
wincoil.gov | Page 1 

REVISED 
AGENDA 

Winnebago County Courthouse  
400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room, 8th Floor 

Thursday, January 23, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance……..………………………...Board Member Christopher Scrol 

3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

4. Roll Call .................................................................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 

5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation
A. Awards – None
B. Presentations – River Bluff Annual Report to the County Board, Laura Schaffer, River Bluff

Administrator
C. Public Hearings – None
D. Public Participation – Fernando B. Tyus, WCSO Communications, Pro

Terrell D. Lewis, VAC Budget, Pro

6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of December 5 and 12, 2024 minutes
B. Layover of January 9, 2025 minutes

7. Consent Agenda….…………………………………………….………………….…… Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Raffle Report
B. Auditor’s Report

8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments shall lay over until
the second board meeting after they are first introduced)

9. Reports of Standing Committees…………..………………………………..…..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Finance Committee…………………………………………………….John Butitta, Committee Chairman 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

1. Committee Report 
2. An Ordinance to Abate the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 

Levy for the Year 2024 Payable 2025 to be Laid Over 
3. An Ordinance to Abate the 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax 

Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 Payable 2025 to be Laid Over 
4. An Ordinance Abating the Tax hereto Levied for the Year 2024 Payable 2025 to pay the 

Principal of and Interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2018 of Winnebago County, Illinois to be Laid Over 

5. An Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 
Payable 2025 to be Laid Over 

6. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 Payable 2025 to be 
Laid Over 

7. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 Payable 2025 to be 
Laid Over 

8. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property Tax Levy for 
the Year 2024 Payable 2025 to be Laid Over 

9. An Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2024 Levy Year for Properties within the 
Special Service Area for the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project to be Laid 
Over 

10. An Ordinance Amending the Winnebago County Code to Provide for an Amendment 
to Eviction Fees and Process by the Sheriff’s Office to be Laid Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ....................................................... .Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  

 
D. Operations and Administrative Committee ........... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Air Duct Cleaning for County Administration Building Using CIP 

2024 Funds 
Cost: $34,800 

3. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Detective Squad Vehicles for Sheriff’s Office 
Using CIP-PSST 2025 Funds 
Cost: $ 111,304 

4. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Civil Process Squad Vehicles for Sheriff’s Office 
Using CIP-PSST 2025 Funds 
Cost: $111,909 

5. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Six Patrol Vehicles for Sheriff’s Office Using CIP-PSST 
2025 Funds 
Cost: $430,575 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 3  

6. Resolution Awarding VMWare Annual Licensing 
Annual Cost: $17,608   3-Year Renewal Cost: $52,823 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (25-001) Resolution Authorizing a Structural Engineering Services Agreement with 

IMEG Consultants Corp. for Rehabilitation of the Roscoe Road Bridge Over the Rock 
River and for the Appropriation of MFT Funds  
Cost:  $256,383 (not to exceed)    C.B. District: 3 

3. (25-002) Resolution for the Award of Bid for Maintenance of Traffic Signals on the 
County Highway System and for the Appropriation of MFT Funds  
Cost:  $488,167.50 (total for 2025 & 2026)  C.B. District: County Wide 

4. (25-003) Resolution Authorizing a Structural Engineering Services Agreement with 
Hutchison Engineering Inc. for Township Bridge Replacement on Kelly Road over 
Sumner Creek in Seward Township  
Cost:  $ 62,725 (by the Township Bridge Program) C.B. District:  1  

5. (25-004) Resolution Authorizing a Structural Engineering Services Agreement with 
Hutchison Engineering Inc. for Township Bridge Rehabilitation on Goeke Road over 
Pink Creek in Pecatonica Township   
Cost:  $ 65,282 (by the Township Bridge Program) C.B. District: 1 

6. (25-005) Resolution Authorizing a Joint Funding Agreement with the State of Illinois for 
Elmwood Road Resurfacing from Owen Center Road to IL-2 and for Appropriating RBI 
Funds  
Cost:  $    208,000 (IDOT/TARP)    C.B. District:  5 
           $ 1,591,200 (County) 

7. (25-006) Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 of the Winnebago County Code Designating 
Elmwood Road (CH-66) from Owen Center Road (CH-13) to IL Route 2 as a Class II Truck 
Route to be Laid Over 
Cost:  $ N/A       C.B. District:  5 

8. (25-007) Resolution Authorizing an Engineering Agreement with Fehr Graham to 
Provide Phase II Engineering and Right-Of-Way Services for Owen Center Road from 
Riverside Boulevard to Latham Road  
Cost:  $ 419,700      C.B. District:  1, 5 

9. (25-008) Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Three Plow/Dump Truck Bodies 
Cost:  $468,560.88     C.B. District:  County Wide 

10. (25-009) Resolution Authorizing an Engineering Services Agreement with ARC Design 
Resources Inc. to provide Phase I Engineering for South Perryville Road from Harrison 
Avenue to E. State Street and for the Appropriation of MFT Funds 
Cost:  $   277,500      C.B. District:  8, 11  

11. (25-011) Resolution Authorizing an Agreement with Realty Services & Consultants, LLC 
(dba Valu Pros) for Land Appraisal Services for Owen Center Road Improvements from 
Riverside Boulevard to Latham Road 
Cost:  $47,100      C.B. District: 1, 5 

12. (25-012) Resolution Authorizing an Agreement with Frank P. Petta Appraisals for Land 
Appraisal Review Services for the Riverside Boulevard and Owen Center Road Projects  
Cost:  $26,075      C.B. District: 1, 5, 17, 20 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 4  

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
Zoning Committee 

1.   Z-05-24 A Map Amendment to rezone 10+- Acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the A2, Agriculture-Related Business District for the property that is 
commonly known as 16562 W. Campbell Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Durand 
Township, District 1. 

2.   Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 2 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a 
Solar Farm) on a 33.39 +- Acre Site commonly known as 5626 Tipple Road / 5303 
Dailette Road (PIN: 15-17-100-008), Rockford, Il 61102, in Rockford Township, District 
9. 

3. Committee Report 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ......................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, February 13, 2025 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Report & Strategic Plan 
 

2024-2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



OVERVIEW 
 
Utilizing a strategic annual planning process with the River Bluff Oversight Board 
of Directors and facility team leaders will help River Bluff be successful. A 
planning approach has been established including timely evaluations to help 
develop plans, goals, and objectives. This process has been implemented to 
assist with developing and achieving both short term and long-term facility 
goals/objectives.   
 
With monthly meetings and reports to the Board of Directors a culture of 
transparency and partnership has developed which has been instrumental in 
maintaining accountability and measuring the progress toward achieving 
desired results.  
 
An internal review of the facility’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and 
threats (SWOT) were initially conducted.  This analysis provided a foundation for 
the development and prioritization of facility goals/objectives. 
 
 

Target Goal 2023 2024 
Core Staff (230) 155 200 
Census (170) 132 148 
Turn Over Rate (4%) 6.13 4.48 

 
 

Financial Comparisons 
Fiscal Year 2023 2024 
Agency Expenditure $4,901,031 $2,892,466 
Revenues $15,527,098 $18,149,719 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LEADERSHIP 
 
Build an engaged driven leadership team.  The desired result is an agile 
leadership team with the skills and motivation to attract and keep employees, 
engage employees, and create a culture of mentorship, quality, and fiscal 
responsibility. 
 
FINANCIAL 
 
Identified goals and objectives to improve or maintain steady revenue, improve 
or maintain successful billing and collections processes and provide a 
budgeting process that forecasts revenues and expenditures annually. The 
desired results include overall improved fiscal health, decrease in outstanding 
accounts receivable, and successful budgeting process to maintain fiscal 
responsibility and cost containment on expenditures. 
 
Accomplishments/Tactics: 
 

• Decreased dependency on agency staff by recruiting core employees. 
• Established reasonable staffing matrix to provide quality care.  Educated 

clinical leadership on staffing guidelines and appropriate staffing levels 
based on census and level of care needed. 

• Established written policies and procedures for billing and collections. 
• Conduct weekly meetings with finance department to review patient 

liability accounts.  
• Educated department heads on monthly budget reports, fiscal 

accountability and annual budgeting process. 
• Working on contracts with insurance companies to become in network 

preferred provider.  Secured contracts with United Health Care and 
Humana. 

• Increased private and semi-private room rates. 
• Increased hospice rates and negotiated contracts for a higher level of 

reimbursement. 
• Obtained an MDS consultant which has increased our compliance with 

documentation capture to maximize our case mix index in return 
increasing our Medicare and Medicaid revenues. 

 
WORKFORCE/STAFF RETENTION AND RECRUITMENT 
 
Identified goals and objectives are to decrease reliability on agency staffing 
and increase the core workforce for River Bluff.  This goal will have a positive 
impact on the fiscal vitality of the organization, quality of care and services 
delivered, and the consumer image of the facility.  



Accomplishments/Tactics: 
 

• Hired fulltime Human Resource staff dedicated to River Bluff. 
• Hosted Job Fairs.  Next Job Fair scheduled in January 29, 2025. 
• Advertisement of open positions, and hiring events. 
• Increased clinical salaries to meet market competitiveness. 
• Implemented employee of the month recognition. 
• Recruited some agency staff that had experience here. 
• Went from 156 employees to 220 employees. 
• Decreased turnover rate to 3.2% 
• Conduct routine staff meetings and annual employee satisfaction surveys. 
• Add exit interview process (January 2025). 
• Improve orientation and annual training (January 2025) 
• Improved leadership visibility and accessibility. 

 
CENSUS 
 
Goal is to Increase average daily census.  Empty beds negatively impact 
revenues.  
 
Accomplishments/Tactics: 
 

• Established target goal of 170 to 175 daily census. 
• Established individual payer type goals for Medicare A (short stays) (10-

15%), Medicaid (70%), Hospice and Private payers (5-10%). 
• Implemented a Census Growth Task Force to review and develop tactics 

in increase census.  
• Continue working on contracts with insurance companies to become in 

network preferred provider. 
• Reviewed admissions process and are working on tactics to streamline 

efficiencies.  
• Targeted networking and marketing with referral sources. 
• Monthly review of lost referrals and analyze why they chose another 

facility over River Bluff. 
 
 
CLINICAL HEALTH/QUALITY/RISK MANAGEMENT/COMPLIANCE 
 
Identify goals and objectives that will maintain or improve the clinical health of 
the facility. Increase CMS Star Rating.  The desired result is resident/employee 



satisfaction, positive health survey(s), improved quality of care, and improved 
fiscal health. 
 
Accomplishments/Tactics: 
 

• Reduce survey outcomes. 
• Clinical performance indicators of success: decrease falls, decrease 

unwanted resident weight loss, decrease in-house acquired pressure 
ulcers, decrease in-house acquired infections,  

• Clinical staff stabilization. 
• Enhance staff education and development (certifications and training). 

(Dementia training certifications, certified trainer for the facility, wound 
care certification, MDS certification, Infection Prevention certification.) 

• Improved compliance resources for staff, policy development, and 
training. (The Compliance Store and Relias Software). 

• Quality meetings held monthly with the development and reports of 
subcommittees for clinical performance indicators. (falls, pressure, weight 
loss, infections) 

• Clinical audits conducted weekly for continued compliance and 
improvement. 

 
CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE 
 
Identify goals and objectives that will maintain or improve resident/employee 
satisfaction. The desired result is improved census, lower employee turnover, 
return admissions, increase in referrals, and improved community reputation. 
 
Accomplishments/Tactics: 
 

• Pro-active approach to processing customer concerns. 
• Made improvements to the grievance process and follow ups.   
• Implement of customer satisfaction surveys (start in 2025). 
• Improve the employee orientation process, annual skills and 

competencies and conduct annual employee surveys.   
• Routine staff meetings for transparency and staff engagement. 
• Create a home like environment for residents and visitors. Update 

furnishings in common areas (in progress). 
• Robust Activities programming, events and community outings. 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Identify goals and objectives that will maintain or improve the physical facility.  
5-year project list for improvements is reviewed and updated annually. The 



desired result is resident/employee satisfaction, compliance with life safety 
code, and modernization of physical environment. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
There are several external influences shaping the nursing home landscape 
nationally and at the state/local levels. We strive to make decisions based on 
data, realities, and the industries changing atmosphere. Through the creation of 
a collaborative atmosphere, engagement, commitment of team leaders, and 
open communication River Bluff has begun its journey to success. 



Approval of 
Minutes 





























CONSENT 
AGENDA 









Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 16, 2025 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 Payable 2025  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 23, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2024 payable 2025. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 payable 2025. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-23-2025 
 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chair 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016E PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX  
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2024 PAYABLE 2025 

 
WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the 
expenses of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice Center; and  
 
WHEREAS, on September 4, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-l 06 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which the 
Board ordained to issue $25,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and in the best interest of the 
County to obtain net present value interest savings and to restructure the indebtedness 
represented by the Series 2003E Bonds and to refund the portion of the Bonds of the 
outstanding Series 2003E Bonds maturing in each of the years 2020 to 2022 inclusive; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2006-CO-143 on November 21, 2006 
authorizing the issuance, and providing for the sale of, the County's General Obligation 
Refinancing Alternate Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2006E in 
the amount of $18,765,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-CO-119 on November 10, 2016 
authorizing and providing for the issuance and sale of $18,515,000 General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016E of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of currently 
refunding and restructuring a portion of the outstanding General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds 2016E; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such 
payments become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and  
 
 
 
 



 

WHEREAS, in said Section 20, the County ordained to levy a 2024 payable 2025, 2016E Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $2,241,450 the 
amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate 
Bonds through December 30, 2025; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate 
each annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient 
funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of 
the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt 
Service otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and  
 
WHEREAS, there is presently at least $2,241,450 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues 
Subaccount, which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the 
aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2025; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2024 
payable 2025 tax year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of 
$2,241,450 for the 2024 payable 2025 tax year is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                      JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR  

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                        PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 16, 2025 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax 
Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 Payable 2025  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 23, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2024 payable 2025. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales 
Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 payable 2025. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-23-2025 
 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chair 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2017C TORT PROPERTY TAX AND 
QUARTER CENT SALES TAX ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY  

FOR THE YEAR 2024 PAYABLE 2025 
 

WHEREAS, on December 22, 2009 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
passed Ordinance No. 2009-CO-87 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordnance") 
which gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of paying expenses 
associated with certain tort obligations in excess of insurance coverage; and 
  
WHEREAS, on March 12, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate Bond 
Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $13,000,000; and 
  
WHEREAS, on April 27, 2017, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois approved 
Ordinance No. 2017-CO-046 which authorizes and provides for the issuance and sale of up to 
$10,250,000 General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate 
Revenue Sources) Series 2017C of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of advance 
refunding a portion of the Outstanding Aggregate Principal Amount of General Obligation 
Alternate Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010A; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments  
on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from the Tort Fund Property Tax; and 
  
WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest payments on the 
outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in which any of the 
aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and 
  
WHEREAS, in Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance the County ordained to levy a 2024 
payable 2025 Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $979,500 (the amount needed to 
make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through 
December 30, 2025); and 
  
 
 



 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that the County Treasurer 
shall deposit Pledged Revenues into the Pledged Revenues subaccount of the Bond Fund in an 
amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest and principal coming due on the 
Series 2017C Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit of such monies for such year, 
the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $979,500 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount to fully 
make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond 
Fund through December 30, 2025; and 
  
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2024 payable 2025 tax year; 
and 
  
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois  
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $979,500.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2024 payable 2025 tax year in the 
amount of $979,500 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                     JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                        PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ  
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 





County Board:  01-23-2025 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chair 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CO 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAX HERETO LEVIED FOR THE YEAR 2024
PAYABLE 2025 TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON TAXABLE GENERAL

OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE)  
SERIES 2018 OF WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS  

WHEREAS, the County Board of Winnebago County, Illinois (County), by an ordinance adopted 
on the 25th day of October 2018, (as amended and supplemented, the "Bond Ordinance"), did 
provide the (i) the issue of Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2018 (the "Bonds"), (ii) the pledge of taxes levied upon all taxable property in the County for 
IMRF purposes (the "Pledged Revenues") to the payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds and (iii) the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such principal of and interest ( 
"Pledged Taxes") if the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to make such payment; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for IMRF purposes for levy year 2024 payable 2025 (the 
"IMRF Levy") and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the "County Clerk"); and 

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the IMRF 
Levy for levy year 2024 payable 2025 does not exceed the County's "limiting rate" for levy year 
2024 payable 2025 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  

WHEREAS, the IMRF Levy for levy year 2024 payable 2025 is not less than the amount of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 
2024 payable 2025; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2024 payable 2025 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: Section J. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2024 payable 
2025 in the Bond Ordinance are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of 
$2,308,953.50. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2024 payable 2025 in accordance with the provisions hereof.  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                     JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                        PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ  
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 16, 2025 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2024 Payable 2025  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 23, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2024 payable 2025. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 
Year 2024 payable 2025. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-23-2025 
 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chair 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020A ALTERNATE BOND  
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2024 PAYABLE 2025 

 
WHEREAS, on January 23, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois adopted 
Ordinance No. 2020-CO-007 (the Authorizing Ordinance) authorizing the issuance of General 
Obligation Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2020A as 
provided in the Act, in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted Ordinance 
No. 2020-CO-039 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which authorized and 
provided for the issuance of not to exceed $4,000,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds 
for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and improving County highways, roads and 
bridges; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments on the 
aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from Matching Tax monies and Motor Fuel 
taxes which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance also provides that the County shall levy and Alternate 
Bond Property Tax each year until the Bonds are fully paid, in an amount sufficient to fully make 
principal and interest payments on the Alternate Bonds as such payments come are; and  
 
WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a face value 
of $2,590,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Direction for Abatement of Taxes to abate from 
the taxes levied in the Bond Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County 
resulting from the sale of the Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as 
hereinabove referred to, the amount of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so 
levied which is to be extended for collection; and  
 
 



 

WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that when funds are available 
and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest 
and principal coming due on the Series 2020A Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit 
of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $401,750 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2025; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2024 payable 2025 tax year; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that the 
2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $401,750.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2024 payable 2025 tax year in the 
amount of $401,750 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this Tax Abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                     JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                        PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ  
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 16, 2025 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024  
Payable 2025 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 23, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 payable 2025. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-23-2025 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chair 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS
(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2021A BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2024 PAYABLE 2025

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) had issued General Obligation Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012F (the “Prior Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued to pay the costs of constructing water system and 
associated capital improvements within the I-39/Baxter Road Service Area (the “Area”); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on March 25, 2021; and  

WHEREAS, $3,485,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021A, of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding alternate bonds of said County, the pledge of certain revenues to the payment of 
principal and interest on said bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021A and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the 
"County Clerk"); and  

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bonds for levy 
year 2024 payable 2025 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  

WHEREAS, the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A 
Bond Levy for levy year 2024 payable 2025 is not less than the amount of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2024 payable 
2025; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2024 payable 2025 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; and 



 

WHEREAS, there is at least $400,200 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2025.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2024 payable 2025 for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), 
series 2021A Bond are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $400,200. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2024 payable 2025 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                     JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

   PAUL ARENA                                                                                                          PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ  
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 16, 2025 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024  
Payable 2025  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 23, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2024 payable 2025. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
(Alternative Revenue Source), Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 payable 2025. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-23-2025 
 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chair 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 
(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2021B BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2024 PAYABLE 2025 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) had issued General Obligation Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012G (the “Prior Bonds”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued to pay the costs of constructing improvements along 
Baxter Road and acquisition of a waterworks system from the Village of Cherry Valley (the 
“water system”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on March 25, 2021; and   
 
WHEREAS, $1,365,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021B, of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding alternate bonds of said County, the pledge of certain revenues to the payment of 
principal and interest on said bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021B and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the 
"County Clerk"); and  
 
WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B Bonds for levy 
year 2024 payable 2025 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  
 
WHEREAS, the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B 
Bond Levy for levy year 2024 payable 2025 is not less than the amount of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2024 payable 
2025; and  
 



 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2024 payable 2025 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; and 
  
WHEREAS, there is at least $157,550 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2025.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2024 payable 2025 for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), 
series 2021B Bond are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $157,550. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2024 payable 2025 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                     JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

   PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                        PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ  
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:     Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:     Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     January 16, 2025 

Resolution Title:   An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds  
 (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property 

  Tax Levy for the Year 2024 Payable 2025 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:   January 23, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information:  The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies 
     filed with the County Clerk. The abatement ordinances abate the tax levies  
     filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2024 payable 2025. The abatements  
     must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar 
   amount changes every year. 

Recommendation:  Approval of an ordinance to abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding 
 Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds 
 Property Tax Levy for the Year 2024 Payable 2025. 

Contract/ Agreement:  Not Applicable  

Legal Review:    Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-23-2025 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chair 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION ALTERNATE REFUNDING
BONDS (PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2022

BONDS PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2024 PAYABLE 2025 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) had issued and had outstanding General 
Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2013A (the "2013A Bonds"); and, these Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on 
August 11, 2022 reference Ordinance No. 2022-CO-057 and $12,500,000 General Obligation 
Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 
Bonds (the "2022 Bonds") were issued; and 

WHEREAS, the revenue source that is pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest 
on the 2022 Bonds are revenues received by the County from the special county retailers' 
occupation tax and service occupation tax for public safety purposes (the "Pledged Revenues"); 
and 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois has levied taxes for the 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2022 Bonds and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the "County 
Clerk"); and  

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2022 Bonds for levy year 2024 payable 2025 calculated by the County Clerk in 
accordance with the provisions of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate 
Revenue Source) Series 2022 Levy for levy year 2024 payable 2025 is not less than the amount 
of principal of and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2024 payable 2025; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Pledged Tax. Whenever the pledged 
revenues or other lawfully funds are available and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount 
necessary to pay any principal of or interest coming due on the Series 2022 Bonds in the 



 

following year and upon the deposit of said monies for said year, the County may abate the 
Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year, with proper notification of such abatement filed 
with the County Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $3,401,250 in the aforesaid Bond Account to fully make all principal 
and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds through 
December 30, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2024 payable 2025 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Pledged Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2024 payable 2025 for the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds are hereby abated in their 
entirety in the amount of $3,401,250. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2024 payable 2025 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                     JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                       PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _______day of __________________________ 2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 16, 2025 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2024 Levy Year for Properties within  
the Special Service Area for the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 23, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The I-39/Baxter Road Water District included a Special Service Area as part of the project. The County 
Board approved a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property within the Special Service 
Area (SSA) for the administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal and 
interest on the County's General Obligation Bonds. The Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2024 
totaled $400,200. There are sufficient funds in the Special Tax Allocation Fund from the URL tax increment 
to make the payments on the bonds for June 30, 2025 and December 30, 2025. Based on sufficient funds 
being on hand the County Board can abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2024 payable 2025. The dollar 
amount changes each year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the Ordinance Abating the Special Tax Roll for 2024 Levy Year for 
Properties within the Special Service Area for the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project Payable 
2025. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-23-2025 
 

 
ORDINANCE  

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chair 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING SPECIAL TAX ROLL FOR 2024 LEVY  
YEAR FOR PROPERTIES WITHIN THE SPECIAL SERVICE AREA FOR  

THE I-39/BAXTER ROAD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT PROJECT  
 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by   
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-056, approved establishing a Special Service Area ("SSA") for 
the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, on October 25, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-072, approved an amendment to said establishing Ordinance, 
which enacted a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property lying within 
the SSA for the administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal 
and interest on the County's General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012F, issued pursuant to the establishing Ordinance for the purpose of financing a part of 
the cost of construction and formation of said County Water District Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 25, 2021, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2021-CO-033, providing for (1) the issue of approximately $3,725,000 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A, for the purpose 
of refunding the County’s Series 2012F Bonds, (2) the pledge of certain revenues to the payment 
of principal and interest on the bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment and (3) the 
sale of the bonds to the purchaser thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement ("Agreement") 
between the County of Winnebago, Village of Cherry Valley and the Village of New Milford, 
dated June 6, 2012, the parties determined that the area in and around the Baxter Road 
interchange on 1-39 is appropriate for the formation of an Industrial Park Conservation Area 
to spur private investments and development defined in the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law 
("URL"); and  

 
 



 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, the Special Tax Allocation Fund ("STAF" as defined 
in the URL), created with the tax increment financing will be placed under the control of 
Winnebago County to be administered for the length of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, funds deposited in the STAF generated from the URL District shall be used to pay 
for the payments on the SSA Bonds as first priority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2024 totaled $400,200; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is sufficient funds from the URL increment in the STAF fund as of December 
22, 2024, to make the payments on the bonds for June 30, 2025 and December 30, 2025.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board hereby abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2024 payable 
2025 in the following amounts: 
 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 
immediately upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Clerk of the County Board shall deliver certified copies of 
this Ordinance to the Winnebago County Clerk, the Chief Financial Officer and the Winnebago 
County Director of Finance. 
  

 
 
 

  

Parcel Number Amount
16-28-300-021 10,928.22      
16-28-300-027 53,483.31      
16-28-300-028 9,481.00        
16-28-300-029 8,880.94        
16-28-400-019 27,108.75      
16-28-400-022 11,563.58      
16-28-400-023 56,829.54      
16-28-400-024 30,017.29      
16-33-100-009 81,834.54      
16-33-200-009 110,072.83    

Total 400,200.00$  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                     JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                        PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN  

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



ORDINANCE 
OF THE   

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2025 CO ________ 

SUBMITTED BY: FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY:  PAUL ARENA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE TO PROVIDE 
FOR AN AMENDMENT TO EVICTION FEES AND PROCESS  

BY THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

WHEREAS, the fees charged for the services provided by the various County Officers are 
established by state law and county ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, certain fees and specifically evictions fees established by state law for the 
Sheriff, 55 ILCS 5/4-5001 may be increased by county ordinance if a cost study determines that 
the fees allowed by state law are not sufficient to cover the costs of providing the service; and 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois engaged MGT of 
America Consulting, LLC to conduct a cost study to determine the actual cost of providing the 
services of which fees are established pursuant to 55 ILCS 5/4-5001; and 

WHEREAS, the execution of court orders to restore possession of property to the 
landlord/owner is delayed weeks after the court ordered date of possession; and  

WHEREAS, contributing to this delay, landlords whose tenants vacate prior to ejectment 
by the Sheriff routinely fail to cancel the scheduled eviction, or are a no call/no show, but the staff 
time and resources have already been expended by the Sheriff’s Office and this further prevents 
other evictions from being scheduled for those allotted date/time slots; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee, after having reviewed the issues related to evictions, 
recommends that landlords shall, at the time of scheduling the services of the Sheriff, pay a fee of 
$100 per hour for either one (1), two (2), or four (4) hours of service time. If the landlord 
determines after scheduling that the services of the Sheriff are no longer needed, the landlord may 
cancel the service call three (3) days before the scheduled date and receive a full refund; however, 
should the landlord fail to cancel the scheduled eviction or is a no call/no show, he or she will 
forfeit the total payment and be required to pay the fees again prior to rescheduling. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the eviction fees and process of the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
be amended as follows: 

(i) Landlords shall pay a fee of $100 per hour for either one (1), two (2), or four (4) hours
of service time upon scheduling an eviction with the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office and 
submit the appropriate paperwork; and  



  
 

(ii) If the landlord determines after scheduling that the services of the Sheriff are no longer 
needed, the landlord may cancel the service call three (3) days before the scheduled date and 
receive a full refund; and  

 
(iii) However, should the landlord cancel the scheduled eviction or is a no call/no show, he 

or she will forfeit the total payment and be required to pay the fees again prior to rescheduling 
with the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon signing. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Ordinance to the County Sheriff, County Administrator 
and the County Auditor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

           Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                                     JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                        PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN  

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                          CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department on behalf of Facilities 
Committee Name: Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 16, 2025 
Board Date:  January 23, 2025     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Air Duct Cleaning For County Administration 

Building Using CIP 2024 Funds 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $75,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $75,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER        By: $40,200 
Reason for CIP increase?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320    Descriptor: CIP 2024 Funds 
Budget Impact? $34,800 

Background Information:  The Winnebago County Administration Building is in need of air duct 
cleaning throughout the entire building.  This project was submitted for CIP 2024.  In November of 
2024, the Purchasing Department issued IFB 24B-2378. 

Six bids were received (See Resolution Exhibit A), with the lowest being submitted from Duct-
Kleen, Inc. The Purchasing Department and Facilities conducted a conference call with the vendor 
to ensure they understood the scope of the project.  We recommend proceeding with Duct-Kleen, 
Inc.  and issuing a Purchase Order in the amount of $34,800. 

Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Facilities Director 

Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will prepare the Purchase Order to Duct-Kleen, Inc. 



County Board Meeting:  January 23, 2025 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2025 CR 
 

RESOLUTION  AWARDING AIR DUCT CLEANING FOR  COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING  
USING CIP 2024 FUNDS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

          

        WHEREAS, The Winnebago County Administration Building is in need of air duct 
cleaning throughout the entire building (See Resolution Exhibit B, Floor Plans); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department went out for Bid 24B-2378 Air Duct Cleaning- 
Admin Building in November and six bid submissions were received; and, 
 

 

           WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the bids received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

 

 

DUCT-KLEEN, INC. 
1901 NORTH BROADWAY STREET 

CREST HILL, ILLINOIS 60403 
 

(See Bid Tab, Resolution Exhibit A) 
 

 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order in the amount of 
$34,800 on behalf of the County of Winnebago, with DUCT-KLEEN, INC., 1901 NORTH BROADWAY 
STREET, CREST HILL, ILLINOIS 60403. 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Facilities, Director of Purchasing, 
Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 
 



                           Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR Duct-Kleen Inc.        
Crest Hill, IL

Duraclean 
Specialists, Inc.  

Belvidere, IL

Triton Testing and 
Design       

Freeport, IL

Hughes 
Environmental, Inc.       

Louisville, KY

Stanley Steemer 
Machesney Park, IL

Kleen Air Service 
Corporation     
Chicago, IL

AIR DUCT CLEANING TOTAL COST $34,800.00 $157,625.00 $48,120.00 $69,995.00 $156,000.00 $84,950.00

BID TAB
24B-2378 AIR DUCT CLEANING- ADMIN BUILDING
 BID OPENING- DECEMBER 20, 2024 - 11:00 A.M.

Winnebago County Purchasing Department
404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT B



RmTmp• 73.1 Cf 
Cool SP. 75.0 °F 
Heat SP. 74.0 °F 

EDH_204 









Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Sheriff’s Office 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 16, 2025 
Board Date:  January 23, 2025     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Detective Squad Vehicles for 

Sheriff’s Office Using CIP-PSST 2025 Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $120,000   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $120,000 
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $8,696  
Reason for CIP increase?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46410-C2507    Descriptor: CIP-PSST 2025 Automobile 
Budget Impact? $111,304 

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office (WCSO) requested the purchase 
of two (2) Detective Squad Vehicle using CIP-PSST 2025 funds. The vehicles for purchase are two 
(2) 2025 Ford Explorers.

The Purchasing Department and the Sheriff’s Office reached out for quotes and availability.  Rock 
River Ford presented the best offer for both vehicles (See Resolution Exhibit A).  

Bandt Communications will provide the specialized fabricating in the amount of $6,273 for each 
vehicle (See Resolution Exhibit B). 

Recommended By:  Sheriff Gary Caruana and Deputy Chief Kyle Boomer 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will prepare and submit Purchase Orders to Rock 
River Ford in the amount of $98,758 and Bandt Communications in the amount of $12,546. 



  County Board Meeting: January 23, 2025 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2025 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF TWO DETECTIVE SQUAD VEHICLES 
FOR SHERIFF’S OFFICE USING CIP PSST 2025 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office requested the purchase of Two
Detective Squads, Ford Explorers, using CIP-PSST 2025 funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department and the Sheriff’s Office obtained quotes for price 
and delivery, resulting in the lowest price and best lead time from Rock River Ford; and  

WHEREAS, Rock River Ford has an equivalent 2025 model on the lot priced lower than 
the government pricing discount; and 

WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the quotes for the two Detective Squad Vehicles 
and Vehicle Fabricating, (Resolution Exhibit A and B) and recommends awarding the 
purchases to Rock River Ford and Bandt Communications, respectively. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue Purchase Orders, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois to Anderson Dealerships, Inc., DBA Rock River 
Ford, 224 North Alpine Road, Rockford, Illinois in the amount of $98,758 and Bandt 
Communications, 1621 Gale Drive, Beloit, Wisconsin, in the amount of $12,546.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, 
County Administrator, County Sheriff, County Board Office and County Auditor.    



Respectfully Submitted, 
       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Anderson's Rock River 
Ford Rockford, IL

Freeport Ford, LLC 
Freeport, IL

Hemblock Ford 
Belvidere, IL

2025 Ford Explorer 49,989  60,460$   60,760$   

Outfitting 6,273  6,272.89$  6,272.89$  

Total 56,262  $66,732.89 $67,032.89

Anderson's Rock River 
Ford Rockford, IL

Freeport Ford, LLC 
Freeport, IL

Hemblock Ford 
Belvidere, IL

2025 Ford Explorer 48,769  61,790$   61,590$   

Outfitting 6,273  6,272.89$  6,272.89$  

Total 55,042  68,062.89$   67,862.89$   

QUOTE TAB
25NB-2379 VEHICLE #1

WCSO DETECTIVE VEHICLE USING CIP PSST 2025 FUNDS

QUOTE TAB
25NB-2379 VEHICLE #2

WCSO DETECTIVE VEHICLE USING CIP PSST 2025 FUNDS

Resolution Exhibit A







Resolution Exhibit B





Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Sheriff’s Office 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 16, 2025 
Board Date:  January 23, 2025     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Civil Process Division Squad 

Vehicles for Sheriff’s Office Using CIP-PSST 2025 Funds 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $130,000   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $130,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $18,091 

Reason for CIP increase?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46410-C2508    Descriptor: CIP-PSST 2025 Automobile 
Budget Impact? $ 111,909 

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office (WCSO) requested the purchase 
of two (2) Civil Process Division Squad Vehicles using CIP-PSST 2025 funds. The vehicles for 
purchase are two (2) 2025 Ford Explorers. 

The Purchasing Department and the Sheriff’s Office reached out for quotes and availability.  Rock 
River Ford presented the best offer for both vehicles (See Resolution Exhibit A).  

Bandt Communications will provide the specialized fabricating of this vehicle in the amount of 
$6,273 for each vehicle (See Resolution Exhibit B). 

Recommended By:  Sheriff Gary Caruana and Deputy Chief Ryan Heavin 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will prepare and submit Purchase Orders to Rock 
River Ford in the amount of $99,363 and Bandt Communications in the amount of $12,546. 



  County Board Meeting: January 23, 2025 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2025 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF TWO CIVIL PROCESS DIVISION SQUAD VEHICLES 
FOR SHERIFF’S OFFICE USING CIP-PSST 2025 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office requested the purchase of Two Civil
Process Squads, Ford Explorers, using CIP-PSST 2025 funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department and the Sheriff’s Office obtained quotes for price 
and delivery, resulting in the lowest price and best lead time from Rock River Ford; and  

WHEREAS, Rock River Ford has an equivalent 2025 model on the lot priced lower than 
the government pricing discount; and 

WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the quotes for the two Civil Process Squad 
Vehicles and Vehicle Fabricating, (Resolution Exhibit A and B) and recommends awarding the 
purchases to Rock River Ford and Bandt Communications, respectively. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue Purchase Orders, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois to Anderson Dealerships, Inc., DBA Rock River 
Ford, 224 North Alpine Road, Rockford, Illinois in the amount of $99,363 and Bandt 
Communications, 1621 Gale Drive, Beloit, Wisconsin, in the amount of $12,546.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, 
County Administrator, County Sheriff, County Board Office and County Auditor.    



Respectfully Submitted, 
       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Resolution Exhibit A











Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Sheriff’s Office 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 16, 2025 
Board Date:  January 23, 2025     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Purchase of Six Patrol Vehicles for Sheriff’s Office 

Using CIP PSST 2025 Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $450,000   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $450,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $19,425 
Reason for CIP increase? 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46410-C2512    Descriptor: CIP 25-Automobile 
Budget Impact? $430,575 

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office (WCSO) requested the purchase 
of six (6) Ford Explorer Utility Vehicles using CIP PSST 2025 funds. The Purchasing Department and 
the Sheriff’s Office reached out for quotes and availability.  Stivers Ford & MidWest Pro Upfitters 
provided vehicle quotes and specialized outfitting options (See Resolution Exhibit A).  This is a 
cost-effective option for the County utilizing government pricing. It also provides a one-stop shop 
for all vehicle outfitting. Additional equipment is also ordered for these vehicles (See Resolution 
Exhibit A) for the full breakdown.  

Patrol Vehicle Breakdown 

6 Police Interceptor Vehicle Purchase  $    289,140 

Outfitting Vendor  $    102,140 

Equipment (Multiple Vendors)  $   39,295 

Total  $    430,575 

Three quotes were obtained (See Resolution Exhibit B). Currently, we are waiting on six (6) 
vehicles previously ordered using CIP 2024 funds, though that dealership provided a lower price 
point they are unable to deliver on procuring and outfitting the vehicles in a timely manner. 

Recommended By:  Sheriff Gary Caruana and Deputy Chief Sean Hughes  

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue Purchase Orders accordingly. 



    County Board Meeting: January 23, 2025 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2025 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF SIX PATROL VEHICLES FOR SHERIFF’S OFFICE  
USING CIP- PSST 2025 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office requested the purchase of six new 
patrol vehicles, using CIP-PSST 2025 funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the quotes for the patrol vehicles and vehicle 
outfitting, (Resolution Exhibit A) and recommends awarding the purchases to Stivers Ford as 
well as multiple vendors for equipment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the County will issue, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, 
Purchase Orders with STIVERS FORD, 1450 EAST HIGHWAY 6 WAUKEE, IOWA, 50263 in the 
dollar amount of ($289,140), as well as, multiple vendors for equipment in the dollar 
amount of ($141,435) for a total amount not to exceed ($430,575). 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, 
County Administrator, County Sheriff, County Board Office and County Auditor.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 2025-Patrol Interceptors 

Number of 
NEW VEHICLES

YEAR/MODEL NOTES EST. COST EST. TOTAL ACTUAL COST DIFFERENCE 

6

2025/ Ford 
Explorer Utility 
AWD 

All standard equipment, black exterior, backup cameras with 
beeps, all emergency lighting and siren equipment,traffic 
lighting premption device,  front prisoner partition, rear 
prisoner seat w/cargo barrier and installation, Sync system, 
rear locks/windows/handles inoperative,  fleet keyed,window 
bars in rear passenger w heated mirrors, Sheriff License, Title, 
and Delivery, AR weapon rack, , Computer Mount/charge 
guard,  install customer supplied police radio,  antennas, 
radar,Axon Cameras and printer (Vendor: Stivers Ford; IA 
government discount)

$65,213.39 $391,280.34 $0.00 $391,280.34

SUBTOTAL: $391,280.34 $0.00 $391,280.34
NUMBER OF 

NEW CPU's and 
Docking 
stations

ITEM NOTES EST. COST EST. TOTAL ACTUAL COST DIFFERENCE 

6

Getac S410 Semi-
Rugged 14" 
Notebook, 
Antenna,Vehicle 
Adapter, and 
Docking station

Intel i5(11th Gen) i5-1135G7, Windows 10 Pro 16GB-256GB 
SSD- Sunlight readable (LCD+TS)- membrane backlit keyboard-  
IEEE 802.11ax wireless LAN stansard (3 year warranty bumper 

to bumper), vehicle adapter 12V DC, 24VDC input, Getac 
Vehicle Dock w/o RF, Getac Antenna(Cellular 
network,Wireless Data Network,GPS, Satellite 

Communication)  (Vendor: Entre Computer Solutions) 
National Cooperative Purchasing Alliance(NCPA) 

$4,409.12 $26,454.72 $0.00 $26,454.72

SUBTOTAL: $26,454.72 $0.00 $26,454.72
DECALS ITEM NOTES EST. COST EST. TOTAL ACTUAL COST DIFFERENCE 

6

Reflective Graphic 
Kits

Reflective Graphic kits  for Black Ford Utility, with Star, Sheriff 
for hood/rear and website; www.winnebagosheriff.com, 

number TBD, and Emergency 911 for rear Quarter panels, 
and accreditation seal for c-pillars. (Vendor:Grafix Shoppe)

$315.00 $1,890.00 $0.00 $1,890.00

6 Installation Installation of graphics (Vendor: Auto Beautifiers) $300.00 $1,800.00 $0.00 $1,800.00
SUBTOTAL: $3,690.00 $0.00 $3,690.00

RADAR UNITS ITEM NOTES EST. COST EST. TOTAL ACTUAL COST DIFFERENCE 

6 Stalker Radar Stalker Radar unit with warranty / DSR 2 Antenna Radar 
(Vendor: Applied Concepts)

$1,525.00 $9,150.00 $0.00 $9,150.00

SUBTOTAL: $9,150.00 $0.00 $9,150.00
RADIO UNITS ITEM NOTES EST. COST EST. TOTAL ACTUAL COST DIFFERENCE 

6
RADIO Motorola Enhanced APX6500 7/800 MHZ Mobile and 

programming (3 year warranty)(Vendor: Motorola Solutions) 
reused from older cars -$              $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMERA UNITS ITEM EST. COST EST. TOTAL ACTUAL COST DIFFERENCE 

6 AXON
AXON Fleet 3 Advanced in car front and rear camera including 
extended warranty, licensing, and all necessary installation 
hardware(Vendor: Axon)****** -$              -$                    $0.00 -$                    

SUBTOTAL: -$                    $0.00 -$                    
OVERALL EST. 

TOTAL
OVERALL 

ACTUAL COST
OVERALL 

DIFFERENCE
$430,575.06 $0.00 $430,575.06

*****Axon Costs are recurring, 
from previous contract. Axon and 
Radios coming from older cars 
saving approx. $9800 per car

Resolution Exhibit A



























Stivers Ford         

Waukee, IA

Anderson Rock River Ford 

Rockford, IL

Morrow Brothers  

Greenfield, IL

2025 Police Interceptor 48,190$  48,251$  44,940$  

Outfitting 17,023$  18,525$  18,525$  

*No On-Site Outfitting option

Total 65,213$  66,776$  63,465$  

QUOTE TAB
25NB-2380 SIX POLICE INTERCEPTORS

WCSO PATROL VEHICLES USING CIP PSST 2025 FUNDS

Please note this comparison is the vehicle and on-site outfitting option only. It does not include the 

additional equipment that is being purchased review those items on Resolution Exhibit A.

Resolution Exhibit B



    Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:     DoIT 
Committee:     Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:   January 16, 2025 
Board Meeting Date:   January 23, 2025 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Awarding VMWare Annual Licensing 

Was item budgeted? Yes   Amount Budgeted: $ 25,000 
  Annual Appropriation Amount: $17,608 

If not, explain funding source:  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 19500-43168      Descriptor: DoIT Software Maintenance 

Background Information:    The Winnebago County Department of Information Technology 
(WinCo DoIT) is required to provide a secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for 
public safety, public health, a nursing home, the circuit courts, elections and all other Elected and 
Appointed officials.  WinCo DoIT uses VMWare as a hypervisor solution to run the County’s virtual 
server environment. This is a 3-year renewal totaling $52,823, paid annually at $17,608. 

Quote Tab  
VMWare Annual Licensing 

CDW-G IT Savvy Insight 
Annual Expense $17,608 $25,850 $18,345 

3 Year Renewal Expense $52,823 $77,549 $55,035 

VMWare is the County’s chosen virtualization platform and licensing is provided only through a 
VMWare reseller. CDWG has been the County’s reseller since we purchased the original licenses. 
The price quoted comes directly from VMWare through CDWG, and is on the National IPA 
Technology Solutions collective agreement (2010811). Three quotes were also obtained, see 
Resolution Exhibit A. 

Recommended By:  Chief Information Officer, Dan Magers  

Follow-Up Steps:  WinCo DoIT will issue a Purchase Order to CDWG in the amount of $17,608. 



County Board Meeting:  January 23, 2025 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2025 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING VMWARE ANNUAL LICENSING 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Department of Information Technology (WinCo DoIT) 
is required to provide a secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for all 
departments; and 

 

WHEREAS,  WinCo DoIT uses VMWare as a hypervisor solution to run the County’s 
virtual server environment; and  

WHEREAS, VMWare is the County’s chosen virtualization platform and licensing is 
provided only through a VMWare reseller; and 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee concurs with this request and 
recommends approval by the Winnebago County Board. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois., hereby authorizes the Purchasing Department to execute a purchase order to CDWG 
for a 3 year renewal, VMWare Annual Licensing in the amount of $17,608 annually . 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, Director 
of Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



     Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Resolution Exhibit A











This order is governed by the General Terms set out at www.broadcom.com/company/legal/licensing. 

Broadcom requires the address on the PO to match the address on the End User's existing Site ID. If End User 
requires address change, may result in system access issues for End User licenses. 

PAYMENT 

PERSONAL DATA 

End User acknowledges and agrees that Broadcom will process Personal Data as part of the provision of the 
Broadcom Offerings in accordance with Broadcom's Privacy Policy located at:  
https:// www.broadcom.com/company/legal/privacy. End User hereby authorizes Broadcom to make necessary 
transfers of Personal Data and that any Broadcom Affiliates and subcontractors may process such Personal Data for 
the purposes of providing the Broadcom Offering contemplated under the End User Terms. Broadcom complies 
with the provisions of the General Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR"), and/or the Swiss Federal Data Protection 
Act and/or other applicable local legislation, with respect to such transfers. Where Broadcom is a processor for 
End User under the GDPR, and/or the Swiss Federal Data Protection Act and/or other applicable local legislation, 
Broadcom's processing shall be subject to and in accordance with Broadcom's global Data Processing Addendum 
("DPA"), including the relevant Standard Contracting Clauses ("SCC") located at: 
https://www.broadcom.com/company/legal/privacy/data-transfers for international data transfer incorporated 
therein. End User has been advised that during the term of this Order Broadcom will collect Personal Data and 
process it as a Controller pursuant to the Privacy Policy and to the extent permitted by GDPR, and/or the Swiss 
Federal Data Protection Act and/or other applicable local legislation. 

ASSIGNMENT 

Neither Party shall assign the End User Terms or any of its rights or delegate any of its duties under the End User 
Terms, either by operation of law, agreement, or any other process, without the prior written consent of the other 
Party, except that Broadcom shall have the right to assign the End User Terms or any of its rights or delegate any of 
its duties under the Agreement at any time to any Broadcom Affiliate(s), or to a successor in interest of all or 
substantially all of the business to which the End User Terms relate. Subject to the foregoing, the End User Terms 
will be binding upon, enforceable by, and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and 
assigns. Any attempted assignment in violation of this section shall be null and void. "Affiliate" shall mean any 
person or entity which directly or indirectly owns, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with a 
party, where control is defined as owning or directing more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting equity securities 
or a similar ownership interest in the controlled entity. 

SOFTWARE SUPPORT AVAILABILITY 

End User understands that Broadcom may either (i) stabilize software in which no future enhancements, versions, 
releases, development, or service packs are planned, or (ii) the software may be end of life or a particular version 
is end of service in which Broadcom will no longer provide (a) operational or technical support and (b) develop and 
provide new enhancements, features, upgrades, service packs, and fixes for the software offering (the "Software 
Support Availability"). Prior to acceptance of this Order, End User should ensure it understands the support for the 
products licensed herein. Acceptance of this order shall constitute acceptance of such support and shall also 
constitute a representation and warranty by End User that it has reviewed and fully understands same. Software 
Support Availability for licensed products can be obtained at https://www.broadcom.com/docs/end-of-support. 

MIGRATION 

End User understands that Broadcom may migrate a previously licensed software (the "Original Product(s)") to a 
new software product (the "Migrated Product(s)"). It is the End User's responsibility to understand which products 
herein may be migrated products. Any migrated products are provided in consideration of Original Product(s) 
being terminated. End User shall cease using and de-install the Original Product(s) following a transition period 



not to exceed ninety (90) days, as of the date of receipt of the Migrated Product(s); The Migrated Product(s) are 
subject to the Agreement, the Specific Program Documentation (the "SPD") applicable to the Broadcom Software 
and Maintenance, located at Broadcom's website address at https://www.broadcom.com/licensing and this 
transaction document including all financial obligations relating to the Original Product(s) which remain valid and 
enforceable and are applicable to the Migrated Product(s). Prior to signature of this Order, End User should ensure 
it understands the migration for the products licensed herein. Execution of this order shall constitute acceptance 
of such migration and shall also constitute a representation and warranty by End User that it has reviewed and 
fully understands same. Migration path for licensed products can be obtained at 
https://www.broadcom.com/docs/product-migration. 
 
 
Broadcom is authorized to use the End User trademarks, service marks, logos, certifications, designations and 
insignias in connection with press and earnings releases. In addition, CA is authorized to use a specific designation 
(such as preferred business Partner etc.) it may have in describing its relationship to End User. 
 
ORDERING TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND END USER TERMS 

The Broadcom Offerings, (and any hardware components if included within this Order), will be delivered either in 
tangible media FCA SD (FCA Shipping Dock), as defined in INCOTERMS 2010, from the Broadcom shipping point 
stated in this Order or by electronic delivery (ESD). 
 
The use of these offerings are governed by these ordering terms and conditions as well as: (a) either (i) the 
Broadcom terms and conditions published at https://www.broadcom.com/licensing, or (ii) the fully executed 
agreement by and between the End User and an applicable Broadcom entity governing the CA, Symantec, or 
VMware branded offerings ordered in this Order (provided that any terms that purport to protect any future 
pricing between the parties and any purported rights to host Broadcom Offerings on the behalf of an unrelated 
third party shall be deemed null and void for purposes of this Order), (b) the Specific Program Documentation (the 
"SPD"), or Product Use Rights (the "PUR"), and/or SaaS Listing applicable to the Broadcom Software, SaaS and 
Maintenance located at https:// www.broadcom.com/licensing, and (c) the additional terms hereon (collectively, 
the "End User Terms"), which Partner agrees to ensure such terms are presented to and agreed by the End User 
along with the additional flow down terms noted below before or at the time of closing the End User transaction. 
Any terms that may appear on Partner's purchase order that vary from or purport to add to the End User Terms 
(including, without limitation, pre-printed terms) are deemed not appended, inapplicable, and void. Broadcom 
Offerings on the behalf of an unrelated third party shall be deemed null and void for purposes of this Order), (b) 
the Specific Program Documentation (the "SPD"), or Product Use Rights (the "PUR"), and/or SaaS Listing applicable 
to the Broadcom Software, SaaS and Maintenance located at https:// www.broadcom.com/licensing, and (c) the 
additional terms hereon (collectively, the "End User Terms"), which Partner agrees to ensure such terms are 
presented to and agreed by the End User along with the additional flow down terms noted below before or at the 
time of closing the End User transaction. 
 



Y

Y

Y



PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 

























































































































































































































































































































































UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
ZONING COMMITTEE 

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
January 23, 2025 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

  PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE VOTED ON:

1. Z-05-24 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 10+- ACRES FROM THE AG,
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE A2, AGRICULTURE-RELATED
BUSINESS DISTRICT requested by Dustin Barlett on behalf of River Bend Seed, LLC,
Applicant, represented by Amy Silvestri, Attorney, for the property that is commonly known as
16562 W. Campbell Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Durand Township.
PIN:  Part of  PIN: 05-32-200-009     C.B. District:     1
Lesa Rating: NA             Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (7-0)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (6-0)

2. ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL FOR A 2 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR
ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 33.39 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY
KNOWN AS 5626 TIPPLE ROAD / 5303 DAILETTE ROAD (PIN: 15-17-100-008),
ROCKFORD, IL 61102, IN ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP, District 9, requested by Fox Sparrow
Solar, LLC (an indirect subsidiary of Trajectory Energy Partners, LLC), Lessee, represented by
James Rodriguez, Attorney and Mack Gapinski, Project Manager.
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (3-4)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (0-6)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

3. COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not
intended as an official public notice):

• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, February 12, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. in
Room 303 of the County Administration Building.

• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, February 26, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the
County Administration Building.























NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

Announcements & Communications 
Date: January 23, 2025 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission the following:

a. Summary of November 7, 2024, Meeting with Constellation Energy Generation,
LLC on Planned Alternative Requests Regarding Reactor Vessel Closure Studs (EPID
L-2024-LRM-0114)

b. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station Units, 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs
Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2; Clinton Power Station, Unit 1; James A.
Fitzpatrick Nuclear Power Plan; Lasalle County Station, Units 1 and 2; Limerick
Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Units 1 and 2;
Peach Bottom Atomic Power Station, Units 2 and 3; and R.E. Ginna Nuclear Power
Plant-Issuance of Amendments to Adopt Technical Specifications Task Force
Traveler TSTF-591 (EPID L-2024-LLA-0046)

c. Public Meeting to Discuss ADVANCE Act Section 505-Nuclear Licensing Efficiency

d. Federal Register/Vol. 90, No. 8/Tuesday, January 14, 2025/Notices

2. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency a
Notice of  Application for Permit to Manage Waste (LPC-PA16) Description of Project:
The City and Rockford and Four Rivers Sanitation Authority recently relocated and

http://www.wincoil.us/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

 

improved the Household Hazardous Waste Collection site from 3333 to 3315 
Kishwaukee Street. This submittal is to request two minor permit modifications.  

 

http://www.wincoil.us/


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	River Bluff Annual Report to the County Board
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	An Ordinance to Abate 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for Yr. 2024 Payable 2025
	An Ordinance to Abate 2017C Tort Property Tax & Quarter Cent Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for Yr. 2024 Payable 2025
	An Ordinance Abating Tax hereto Levied for Yr. 2024 Payable 2025 to Pay the Principal of and Interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds
	An Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for Yr. 2024 Payable 2025
	An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for Yr. 2024 Payable 2025
	An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for Yr. 2024 Payable 2025
	An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (PSST Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property Tax Levy
	An Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2024 Levy Year for Properties within the Special Service Area for 1-39/Baxter Rd. County Water District Project
	Ordinance Amending the Winnebago County Code to Provide for an Amendment to Eviction Fees & Process by Sheriff's Office
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Awarding Air Duct Cleaning for County Administration Building using CIP 2024 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Detective Squad Vehicles for Sheriff's Office using CIP-PSST 2025 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Civil Process Division Squad Vehicles for Sheriff's Office using CIP-PSST 2025 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Six Patrol Vehicles for Sheriff's Office using CIP PSST 2025 Funds
	Resolution Awarding VMWare Annual Licening
	Public Works Committee
	(25-001) Resolution Authorizing a Structural Engineering Services Agreement with IMEG Consultants Corp. Rehabilitation of the Roscoe Road Bridge over the Rock River
	(25-002) Resolution for Award of Bid for Maintenance of Traffic Signals on the County Highway System & for the Appropriation of MFT Funds
	(25-003) Resolution Authorizing Structural Engineering Services Agreement with Hutchinson Engineering Inc. for Township Bridge Replacement on Kelly Road over Sumner Creek in Seward Township
	(25-004) Resolution Authorizing Structural Engineering Services Agreement with Hutchison Engineering Inc. for Township Bridge Rehabilitation on Goeke Road over Pink Creek in Pecatonica Township
	(25-005) Resolution Authorizing Joint Funding Agreement with State of IL for Elmwood Road Resurfacing from Owen Center Road to IL-2
	(25-006) Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 of Winnebago County Code Designating Elmwood Road (CH-66) from Owen Center Road (CH-13) to IL Route 2
	(25-007) Resolution Authorizing Engineering Agreement with Fehr Graham to Provide Phase II Engineering & Right-of-Way Services
	(25-008) Resolution Authorizing Purchase of Three Plow/Dump Truck Bodies
	(25-009) Resolution Authorizing Execution of Engineering Services Agreement with ARC Design Resources, Inc. to Provide Phase I Engineering
	(25-011) Resolution Authorizing Agreement with Realty Services & Consultants, LLC (dba Valu Pros) for Land Appraisal Services for Owen Center Road Improvements
	(25-012) Resolution Authorizing Agreement with Frank P. Petta Appraisals for Land Appraisal Review Services for Riverside Blvd. & Owen Center Road Projects
	Unfinished Business
	Zoning Committee
	Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 2MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a Solar Farm) on a 33.39 +- Acre Site commonly known as 5626 Tipple Rd./5303 Dailette Rd.
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



